
City Hall

107 N. Nevada Avenue

Colorado Springs, CO 

80903

City of Colorado Springs

Meeting Minutes

Council Work Session

City Council meetings are broadcast live on Channel 18. In 

accordance with the ADA, anyone requiring an auxiliary aid to 

participate in this meeting should make the request as soon as 

possible but no later than 48 hours before the scheduled event.

10:00 AM Council ChambersMonday, April 8, 2024

How to Watch the Meeting

Coloradosprings.gov/springstv | Facebook Live: Colorado Springs City Council

Facebook Page @coscity Council | SPRINGS TV - Comcast Channel 18 / 880 (HD)

-  Stratus IQ Channel 76 / 99 (Streaming)

Estimated agenda item times are provided for planning purposes and do not constitute notice 

of a specific time for any item.  Items may take more or less time than estimated.  City Council 

may amend the order of items.

1.  Call to Order and Roll Call

Councilmember Yolanda Avila, President Pro Tem Lynette Crow-Iverson, 

Councilmember Dave Donelson, President Randy Helms, Councilmember Nancy 

Henjum, Councilmember David Leinweber, and Councilmember Brian Risley

Present 7 - 

Councilmember Mike O'Malley, and Councilmember Michelle TalaricoExcused 2 - 

2.  Changes to Agenda

President Helms stated the second item in the Closed Executive Session 

will be taken after item 10.A.

Consensus of City Council agreed to this change on the agenda.

3.  Regular Meeting Comments

President Helms requested item 4B.J. be removed from the April 9, 2024 

City Council meeting Consent Calendar because it is currently scheduled 

as a back-to-back item, and he would prefer for it to be postponed for two 

weeks. 

Consensus of City Council agreed to this change.

4.  Review of Previous Meeting Minutes

4.A. City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes March 25, 202424-175

Page 1City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11600


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

  Presenter:  

Sarah B. Johnson, City Clerk

3-25-24 City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes FinalAttachments:

Councilmember Henjum requested the minutes of item 10. of the March 25, 

2024 Work Session be revised to include that when she met with the 

Bishop of the Anglican Church of Rwanda, the key statement was actually 

not just meeting him, but a joint conversation with him and the Men of 

Influence regarding having conversations around profound differences in 

conflict and reconciliation with violence. Sarah B. Johnson, City Clerk, 

stated she will make that amendment.

The minutes of the March 25, 2024 Work Session were approved as 

amended by Consensus of City Council.

5.  Executive Session

5A.  Open

There was no Open Executive Session.

5B.  Closed

5B.A. In accord with City Charter art. III, § 3-60(d) and its incorporated 

Colorado Open Meetings Act, C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(b) and (e) and City 

Code § 1.5.506(B), the City Council, in Open Session, is to determine 

whether it will hold a Closed Executive Session.  The issues to be 

discussed involve (i) consultation with the City Attorney for the purpose of 

receiving legal advice related to short term rental regulations and (ii) 

consultation with the City Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal 

advice and determining positions relative to negotiation regarding a 

litigation settlement in excess of $100,000 in El Paso County District 

Court Case No. 20CV31791, Myers & Sons Construction, L.P. v. City of 

Colorado Springs and Colorado Springs Utilities.

The President of Council shall poll the City Councilmembers, and, upon 

consent of two-thirds of the members present, may conduct a Closed 

Executive Session.  In the event any City Councilmember is participating 

electronically or telephonically in the Closed Executive Session, each 

City Councilmember participating in the Closed Executive Session shall 

affirmatively state for the record that no other member of the public not 

authorized to participate in the Closed Executive Session is present or 

able to hear the matters discussed as part of the Closed Executive 

Session.  If consent to the Closed Executive Session is not given, the 

item may be discussed in Open Session or withdrawn from 

24-184

Page 2City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fd446c2e-3125-4e73-8a84-eb0346bc6b20.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11607


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

consideration.

  Presenter:  

Wynetta Massey, City Attorney

Closed Session memo - 4-1-24Attachments:

Ben Bolinger, Legislative Counsel, City Attorney’s Office, stated that in 

accord with City Charter art. III, § 3-60(d) and its incorporated Colorado 

Open Meetings Act, C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(b) and (e), the City Council, in 

Open Session, is to determine whether it will hold an electronic Closed 

Executive Session. The issues to be discussed involve (i) consultation with 

the City Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice related to short 

term rental regulations and (ii) consultation with the City Attorney for the 

purpose of receiving legal advice and determining positions relative to 

negotiation regarding a litigation settlement in excess of $100,000 in El 

Paso County District Court Case No. 20CV31791, Myers & Sons 

Construction, L.P. v. City of Colorado Springs and Colorado Springs 

Utilities.

President Helms polled City Council regarding the desire to proceed with 

an electronic Closed Executive Session. At least two-thirds of City Council 

agreed to proceed in an electronic Closed Executive Session.

6.  Presentations for General Information

6.A. Cultural Affairs Office of the Pikes Peak Region (COPPeR) - 2023 

year-end Lodgers and Auto Rental Tax (LART) contract update to City 

Council

  Presenter:  

Angela Seals, President and CEO, Cultural Affairs Office of the Pikes 

Peak Region

24-065

Cultural Office LART End of Year 2023 Report SlidedeckAttachments:

Angela Seals, President and CEO, Cultural Office of the Pikes Peak 

Region (COPPeR), presented the six-month Lodgers and Auto Rental Tax 

(LART) contract update. She provided an overview of their mission, service 

area, COPPer office staff, focus arenas of impact, and 2023 highlights. Ms. 

Seals went over building an arts destination, the impact of cultural tourists, 

cultural promotion/tourism key performance indicators (KPIs), creative 

economy KPIs, special community initiatives KPIs, fiscal 

management/accountability KPIs, and ongoing advocacy KPIs.

Councilmember Donelson asked how much COPPeR receives from LART. 

Page 3City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=948fb108-6e26-496c-9005-d0a26be1b58b.docx
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11415
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=14872ded-e161-410b-a6f1-556c75ebdef1.pptx


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

Ms. Seals stated $450,000, which is one of the smallest amounts provided 

to an organization by LART.

Councilmember Henjum asked how they calculate the number of tourists 

versus the number of locals visiting PeakRadar. Ms. Seals stated they use 

Google Analytics which identifies where the IP address is located.

Councilmember Henjum asked how they connect tourists with PeakRadar. 

Ms. Seals explained how they embed PeakRadar in hotels and other 

attractions in the community.

Councilmember Leinweber stated PeakRadar helps connect people with 

like-minded people and asked what challenges COPPeR faces with 

tracking all the different types of groups. Ms. Seals stated they always 

welcome additional help and the PeakRadar Pages did help identify those 

groups, but because the City has grown so much, it was really difficult to 

make sure the information was updated each year.

President Pro Tem Crow Iverson asked how much of their budget is funded 

by LART. Ms. Seals stated approximately sixty-five percent.

Councilmember Donelson asked what the biggest art events are. Ms. 

Seals stated the largest venues are the World Arena, Fine Arts Center, Ent 

Center for the Arts, and the Pikes Peak Center.

Councilmember Donelson asked what year these numbers represent. Ms. 

Seals stated the data was collected in 2021 which still had impact from the 

pandemic.

6.B. Colorado Springs Sports Corp - 2023 year-end Lodgers and Auto 

Rental Tax (LART) contract update to City Council

  Presenter:  

Megan Leatham, President and CEO, Colorado Springs Sports Corp

24-066

CSSC - LART 2023 year-end City Council Presentation 4-8-24Attachments:

Megan Latham, President and CEO, Brianna Goodwin, Chief 

Development Officer, and Aubrey Mccoy, Chief Operating Officer, 

Colorado Springs Sports Corp (CSSC), stated they received $900,000 

from Lodgers and Auto Rental Tax (LART) where $300,000 of that amount 

is money in and money out which they use to bid for events and the 

remaining $600,000 is twenty-two percent of their operating budget. She 

provided a brief overview of mission, their objectives, 2023 company 

year-end statistics, Sports Commission, 2023 endorsed events, future 

objectives, and key performance indicators (KPI).

Page 4City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11416
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c9fd894-c6d4-47f9-ab4c-e5dc5f6a5d6f.pdf


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

Councilmember Donelson asked if the events go through the LART 

process. Ms. Latham stated due to the timing of the LART application 

cycle, sometimes the events need to be funded outside of those dates.

Councilmember Henjum asked how the Sports Authority is connected to 

C2C. Ms. Latham stated it is through the State's Regional Tourism 

Authority (RTA) requirements for the Colorado Sports Authority, which 

started ten to fifteen years ago, specifically focused on Weidner Field and 

Ed Robson Arena, which make sure that they are bringing out of town 

visitors to those specific venues. She stated it requires there is an authority 

such as an audit committee to oversee it which includes a Mayor appointed 

chair and a City Council representative, Aaron McGuire. Councilmember 

Henjum stated she was not aware of there being a City Council 

representative. Emily Evans, City Council Administrator, stated she will 

look into that.

Councilmember Leinweber asked why there is a decrease in economic 

impact from the United States Olympic Committee (USOC). Ms. Latham 

stated their numbers do not reflect USOC economic impact because they 

are a separate entity they are only reporting the tourism impact they bring 

into the community.

Councilmember Leinweber asked how City Council can assist with gaining 

access to the trails being used for the Pikes Peak APEX event which are 

currently being blocked by Colorado Springs Utilities and the United States 

Forest Service. Ms. Latham stated they have met with the United States 

Forest Service and Trails, Open Space, and Parks (TOPS) to see how 

they can gain access and illustrate to them how they will be good stewards 

of the trails. Councilmember Donelson commented that the CSU water 

system cannot be jeopardized.

Councilmember Donelson asked if the Switchbacks games count toward 

the State’s requirements. Ms. Latham stated they do not.

7.  Staff and Appointee Reports

7.A. Agenda Planner Review

  Presenter:  

Sarah B. Johnson, City Clerk

24-174

Agenda Planner Review 4-8-24Attachments:

There were no comments on this item.

8.  Items for Introduction

Page 5City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11599
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b7362499-fa92-46f8-a02a-65585d0fb28f.pdf


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

8.A. A Resolution adopting and entering into The Trust Agreement for The 

Colorado Firefighter Heart, Cancer, And Behavioral Health Benefits 

Trust and taking other actions in connection therewith

  Presenter:  

Randy Royal, CSFD Fire Chief

Jayme  McConnellogue, Deputy Fire Chief

24-168

Heart_Cancer-Trust-Agreement-IGA-3-11-24

Heart and Cancer PPT - City Council  Final

Resolution-ColoradoFirefighterTrust-FINAL-3-28-24.docx

Attachments:

Randy Royal, Fire Chief, Colorado Springs Fire Department (CSFD), 

introduced the Resolution adopting and entering into the trust agreement 

for the Colorado Firefighter Heart, Cancer, (CFHC) and Behavioral Health 

Benefits Trust.

Jayme McConnellogue, Deputy Fire Chief, CSFD, provided an overview of 

the trust, CFHC Trust’s Heart Program, CFHC Trust’s Cancer Program, 

CSFD Firefighter cancer statistics, Cancer Program eligibility, 

advantages, benefits, awards, and cost breakdown. She went over the 

Behavioral Health Program benefits and cost breakdown. 

Councilmember Donelson asked if the $500,000 funding from Department 

of Local Affairs (DOLA), is specifically allocated for Colorado Springs. Ms. 

McConnellogue confirmed they are. 

Councilmember Donelson asked what this fund was previously used for. 

Ms. McConnellogue stated it was for cardiac care. Ryan Talmage, Risk 

Manager, Human Resources, explained they are reimbursed by DOLA 

each year based on costs.

Councilmember Risley asked who pays for the behavioral trust. Ms. 

McConnellogue stated it is fully funded by the State.

Councilmember Henjum asked when the program started. Ms. 

McConnellogue stated the program started in 2014.

Councilmember Henjum asked how many municipalities are already 

participating in the program. Ms. McConnellogue stated there are 98 

departments participating in the Heart Trust Program and 103 are 

participating in the Cancer Trust Program.

President Helms requested an annual briefing on these programs if they 

are approved. Ms. McConnellogue and Chief Royal confirmed they would.

Page 6City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11567
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=25ffc67c-75eb-45e1-ab7b-cacfe67ecba9.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=696b2a50-40b2-491d-a007-3d8f0fdba08b.pptx
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=320a3c3e-fb13-4d31-ae78-4e34ee7266ee.docx


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

Councilmember Donelson asked if the cost of the premiums is anticipated 

to increase. Ms. McConnellogue stated she has not researched that, but 

DOLA will reimburse the costs.

Councilmember Donelson asked how many cases of skin cancer and 

melanoma have been diagnosed. Mr. Talmage stated there have been ten 

cases of skin cancer and five cases of melanomas.

Councilmember Donelson asked what the total costs to the City would be 

for the first three years. Ms. McConnellogue stated it would be zero dollars 

for the first three years, in the fourth year it would cost $51,228, and the fifth 

year would cost $167,901.

Councilmember Donelson asked when Denver, CO started participating in 

the trusts. Ms. McConnellogue stated approximately a year ago.

Councilmember Donelson asked what group the firefighters are being 

compared to in the statistics findings. Ms. McConnellogue stated they were 

compared to the general population and was conducted by the International 

Agency on Research Cancer, and she will provide additional information.

8.B. An Ordinance Platting Two Columbaria in Evergreen Cemetery in Block 

210

  Presenter:  

Britt I. Haley, Director - Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services

Kim King, Assistant Director - Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services

24-144

Exhibit A - Map of Evergreen Cemetery

Exhibit B - Schematic of New Columbarium

4-8-24 - Evergreen Cemetery New Columbaria Platting in Block 210

4-8-24 - Evergreen Cemetery New Columbaria Ordinance

Attachments:

Kim King, Assistant Director, Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services, 

presented the Ordinance platting two columbaria in Evergreen Cemetery in 

Block 210. She provided a brief history of Evergreen Cemetery, 

columbaria location, columbaria examples, and columbarium schematic.

Councilmember Henjum asked how many slots are remaining in the 

columbaria. Ms. King stated there are a total of 96 compartments and only 

18 have been sold.

Councilmember Donelson and Councilmember Leinweber asked if the 

columbaria will match the existing columbaria on site. Ms. King stated they 

are a different color granite but confirmed they will be complementary of 

each other.

Page 7City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11524
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5f9990f8-57f8-4722-88f9-74e0fadb7f84.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52bd9996-444a-413b-94f8-5ca0a4346cfa.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2608c3a6-9de8-4d91-a5bd-b19e3ea92157.pptx
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e28bed37-08f6-4e1b-9383-c45210f9e901.docx


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

8.C. An Ordinance Amending Section 201 (General Penalty) of Part 2 

(General Penalty) of Article 1 (Administration) of Chapter 1 

(Administration, Personnel and Finance) of the  Code of the City of 

Colorado Springs 2001, as amended, Pertaining to Automated Vehicle 

Identification Systems

  Presenter:  

Chief Adrian Vasquez, Colorado Springs Police Department

Commander Pamela Castro, Colorado Springs Police Department

Shantel Withrow, Division Chief - Prosecution, City Attorney’s Office

24-053

AVIS_Ch_1-ORD-2024-02-14.docx

2024 AVIS-Council Presentation_VFinal.pptx

Attachments:

Shantel Withrow, Division Chief - Prosecution, City Attorney’s Office, 

presented the Ordinances amending City Code pertaining to Automated 

Vehicle Identification Systems (AVIS). She provided an overview of AVIS, 

current Ordinances, background regarding why the change is needed, and 

proposed City Code changes for 10.1.115 and five other City Code 

sections which reference AVIS, the penalties, or definitions. 

Councilmember Donelson asked what would be the outcome if another 

person other than the owner of the vehicle is cited for speeding. Ms. 

Withrow stated under state law, the registered owner is responsible, but 

anyone receiving a ticket can challenge it in municipal court where each 

case is reviewed on a fact specific basis.

Councilmember Donelson asked how the Final Order of Liability is 

presented. Ms. Withrow stated it is initially sent in the mail, but the final 

order or original notice will have to be personally served before collections 

can be assessed against them.

Councilmember Leinweber asked if the vendor mailing the tickets will be 

located out of state. Adrian Vasquez, Chief, Colorado Springs Police 

Department (CSPD), stated the vendor is represented in multiple states 

and is the same vendor they currently use for photo red light tickets.

Councilmember Donelson asked if a first-time speeding of ten miles per 

hour or less violation will be issued a warning or a ticket. Ms. Withrow 

stated they do not intend to capture those types of violations, but the law 

would require a warning in that situation.

Councilmember Donelson asked why the City will not be issuing points 

against driver’s licenses with these violations. Ms. Withrow stated the state 

law does not allow points to be issued because the offense is a civil 

infraction.

Page 8City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11398
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a1438e48-8356-4b0c-ad3d-7c681cc639e2.docx
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=40ffb1dc-37b4-4ce7-b83a-991b43bd2093.pptx


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

President Helms asked if a civilian will be monitoring these areas. Ms. 

Withrow confirmed there will be.

Chief Vasquez identified the current use - photo red light program, 

proposed new program of speed safety cameras, implementation, and 

benefits.

Councilmember Donelson asked if an Officer could issue points against a 

license. Chief Vasquez stated not if CSPD used AVIS technology to detect 

the violation.

President Pro Tem Crow-Iverson asked if points could be issued if it was 

an egregious amount of speed over the limit. Chief Vasquez stated not if 

AVIS technology was used to assess it.

Councilmember Henjum asked why there would be a person assigned to 

capture the speeding violations when speeding is a 24-hour issue. Chief 

Vasquez stated it is because it is a statutory requirement that it is a staffed 

system.

Councilmember Henjum asked how long the warnings will be in place in an 

area before tickets will be issued. Chief Vasquez stated there will be a 

thirty-day requirement to notify the public and then another thirty-day 

requirement of issuing warnings.

Councilmember Leinweber asked if a vehicle is used in a crime, would the 

owner be held responsible for the crime. Chief Vasquez stated they would 

have to determine the responsibility of the owner. Ms. Withrow stated they 

would not hold the owner liable in the case of a stolen vehicle.

Councilmember Henjum requested this information be presented to the 

Citizen’s Transportation Advisory Board. Chief Vasquez agreed to that 

request.

Councilmember Donelson asked where the revenue goes. Chief Vasquez 

stated the City’s General Fund.

Councilmember Donelson requested the amount collected from the 

red-light cameras. Charae McDaniel, Chief Financial Officer, stated that 

revenue is not tracked separately from other nonmoving violations so that 

specific amount would be difficult to determine.

Councilmember Donelson asked how they will know if the system will pay 

for itself if the revenue is not tracked separately. Ms. McDaniel stated if 

Page 9City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024



April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

they receive money from the vendor after the vendor has removed their 

fees, it will illustrate that it is a net neutral program.

President Helms and Councilmember Henjum stated they support this 

program in order to address speeding and traffic safety.

Councilmember Leinweber stated he supports this system but has 

concerns about video monitoring citizens.

8.D. An Ordinance Amending Section 101 (Penalties) and Repealing and 

Reordaining Section 115 (Automated Vehicle Identification System 

(AVIS)) Both of Part 1 (General Provisions), Amending Section 202 

(Definitions) of Part 2 (Definitions) of Article 1 (Administration and 

Enforcement), Amending Section 104 (Exceeding Posted Speed Limit) 

of Article 5 (Speed Regulations), and Amending Section 105 (Traffic 

Control Signal Legend) of Article 17 (Official Control Signal Legend) of 

Chapter 10 (Motor Vehicles and Traffic) of the Code of the City of 

Colorado Springs 2001, As Amended, Pertaining to Automated Vehicle 

Identification Systems.

  Presenter:  

Chief Adrian Vasquez, Colorado Springs Police Department

Commander Pamela Castro, Colorado Springs Police Department

Shantel Withrow, Division Chief - Prosecution, City Attorney’s Office

24-102

AVIS_Ch_10-ORD-2024-02-14.docx

2024 AVIS-Council Presentation_VFinal

Attachments:

Please see comments in Agenda item 8.C.

8.E. An Ordinance amending multiple Sections of Article 7 (Sales and Use 

Tax) and Section 105 (Applicability of City Sales and Use Tax 

Ordinance) of Article 10 (Motion Picture Theater Admissions Tax) both 

of Chapter 2 (Business Licensing, Liquor Regulation and Taxation) of the 

Code of the City of Colorado Springs 2001, as Amended, pertaining to 

Sales Related to a School

  Presenter:  

Charae McDaniel, Chief Financial Officer

24-171

SalesTaxExemptionSalesSchoolORD-2024-03-04_CleanAttachments:

Charae McDaniel, Chief Financial Officer, presented the Ordinance 

amending City Code pertaining to sales related to a school. She provided 

an overview of current City Code which currently requires both public and 

non-public schools to obtain a city sales tax license and collect city sales 

tax on retail sales, including all fundraising activities. She identified the 

proposed sales tax exemption for retail sales made by schools, parent or 

Page 10City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11455
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=609dcaaa-7691-4195-9a62-b2120f74b62c.docx
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bd36515f-e097-43a5-ad81-13e0816961db.pptx
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11572
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bcfbf6a1-b994-47b4-9507-3b6ec14701de.docx


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

teacher organizations, booster clubs, and student classes or clubs, 

provided that all proceeds from these sales are intended for the benefit of a 

school or school-approved student organization and this exemption would 

apply to both public and non-public schools, kindergarten through twelfth 

grade.

Councilmember Henjum read a prepared statement regarding a concern 

she received from a constituent, Jim Kline, regarding the school's Robotics 

Team, and the challenges they face with fund raising.

Councilmember Leinweber asked what percentage of sales tax this 

represents. Ms. McDaniel stated the fiscal impact to the City would be 

approximately $30,000 per year.

Councilmember Donelson asked if this is limited to public schools, if 

colleges are included, and is based on the number of students enrolled. 

Ms. McDaniel stated she will provide that information.

Councilmember Risley stated if an entity is already tax-exempt, it makes 

sense as a logical extension, that these proceeds are also tax-exempt, and 

he is in support of it.

8.F. An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 23-65 (2024 Budget 

Appropriation Ordinance) for a supplemental appropriation to the 

Lodgers & Auto Rental Tax (LART) Fund in the amount of $658,100 for 

additional projects and events recommended by the LART Citizen 

Advisory Committee

  Presenter:  

Charae McDaniel, Chief Financial Officer

24-172

LART SuppAppropORD_4.1.24 without Exh A

2024 LART Supplemental Exhibit A PDF

Attachments:

Charae McDaniel, Chief Financial Officer, presented the Ordinance for a 

supplemental appropriation of $658,100 to the Lodgers and Automobile 

Rental Tax (LART) fund for additional projects and events as 

recommended by the LART Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) and 

provided a brief overview of the LART fund.

Councilmember Leinweber asked where the additional revenue came 

from. Ms. McDaniel stated it came from canceled events, events which did 

not fulfill the requirements under their LART contract, and the actual 

revenue which came in excess of the budgeted revenue from the prior year.

Councilmember Donelson requested a breakdown of the events which will 

receive funding. Ms. McDaniel stated the Exhibit which lists those events 

Page 11City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11573
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b7ecac78-2d89-4202-83ca-2b2dd2a0e7ec.docx
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=91c749d4-484f-4b7b-a281-86434f83ffd2.pdf


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

and the funding is included as part of the Ordinance.

Councilmember Donelson asked how much will be given to the 

Switchbacks. Ms. McDaniel stated $27,000.00.

9.  Items Under Study

9.A. An informational presentation for the Annexation Policy Checkpoint on 

the proposed Extol Park Vista Addition No. 2 Annexation, annexing 

0.659 acres located at 4401 Siferd Boulevard.

  Presenter:  

Gabe Sevigny, Planning Supervisor, Planning + Neighborhood Services

Peter Wysocki, Director of Planning + Neighborhood Services

Extol Homes, LLC, Brad Griebenow

Land Development Consultants, Inc, Dave Hostetler

24-180

Extol Addition No 2 Annexation - Staff Presentation

Attachment 1 - Extol Park Vista Addition No 2 - Annexation Plat

Attachment 2 - Extol Park Vista Addition No 2 - Project Statement

Attachment 3 - Vicinity Map

Attachment 4 - Annexation Agreement Draft

Attachment 5 - FIA Memo

Attachments:

Gabe Sevigny, Planning Supervisor, Planning and Community 

Development Department, provided an informational presentation for the 

Annexation Policy Checkpoint on the proposed Extol Park Vista Addition 

No. 2 Annexation, annexing 0.659 acres located at 4401 Siferd Boulevard. 

He provided a brief overview of the vicinity map and guidelines.

Brad Griebenow, President, Extol Homes, representing the applicant, 

provided an overview of the eight attached duplexes/lots at the intersection 

of Austin Bluffs Parkway and Barnes Road and stated they have already 

received approvals from the Stormwater Enterprise (SWENT) and 

Colorado Springs Utilities.

There were no comments on this item.

9.B. An informational presentation for the Annexation Policy Checkpoint on 

the proposed Park Vista Addition No. 10 Annexation, annexing 2.178 

acres located at 4372 Siferd Boulevard

  Presenter:  

Gabe Sevigny, Planning Supervisor, Planning + Neighborhood Services

24-181

Page 12City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11554
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d0e58396-41c9-4281-aacc-a7fe1b02d7d6.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0c9799d0-45ad-4eba-a9ec-2bb634649812.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ccc40b8b-74b4-4e2b-bfc8-663ccbc660d8.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2d9b5ec5-9020-43e4-a582-a7bee09ebeb6.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=67ca56f3-f022-4aec-b7de-d5b5acfe07cb.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b28ce33f-a3aa-4b6d-add7-0be20f15e1e4.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11604


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

Peter Wysocki, Director of Planning + Neighborhood Services

Orchid Lots LLC, Jeff Carter

Land Development Consultants, Inc, Dave Hostetler

Park Vista Addition No 10 Annexation - Staff Presentation

Park Vista Addn No 10 - FIA Below Threshold Memo PDF

Attachment 1 - Park Vista Addition No 10 - Annexation Plat

Attachment 2 - Park Vista Addition No 10 - Project Statement

Attachment 3 - Vicinity Map

Attachment 4 - Annexation Agreement Draft

Attachments:

Gabe Sevigny, Planning Supervisor, Planning and Community 

Development Department, provided an informational presentation for the 

Annexation Policy Checkpoint on the proposed Park Vista Addition No. 10 

Annexation, annexing 2.178 acres located at 4372 Siferd Boulevard. He 

provided a brief overview of the vicinity map and guidelines.

Mitch Held, Engineering Consultant, representing the applicant, stated they 

are proposing eight units, three duplexes, two school family homes 

(residential), public improvements on Siferd Boulevard providing curb, 

gutter, sidewalk, and a sanitary sewer extension on Rosalee Street as well 

as a detention pond on site to improve the stormwater runoff in the area.

There were no comments on this item.

9.C. An informational presentation for the Annexation Policy Checkpoint on 

the proposed Colorado Centre Addition No. 3 Annexation, pertaining to 

32.932 acres located northwest of the Foreign Tade Zone Boulevard and 

Bradley Road intersection

  Presenter:  

Gabe Sevigny, Planning Supervisor, Planning + Neighborhood Services

Peter Wysocki, Director of Planning + Neighborhood Services

COPO 8560 Real Estate LLC, Ermand Ruybal

Kimley Horn

24-182

Colorado Centre Addition No 3 Annexation - Staff Presentation

Attachment 1 - Colorado Centre Addition No 3 - Annexation Plat

Attachment 2 - Colorado Centre Addition No 3 - Project Statement

Attachment 3 - Colorado Centre Addition No 3 - Vicinity Map

Attachment 4 - Annexation Agreement Draft

Attachment 5 - FIA Cover Letter Colo Centre Addn No 3

Attachments:

Gabe Sevigny, Planning Supervisor, Planning and Community 

Page 13City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024

https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47f2e71e-a0fa-479f-81b5-e5b2f6f95a28.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c397d199-206c-4901-908c-a227b3d2d4fc.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47121f28-d314-4ce8-96b2-cebc80675b48.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cd3be24a-56c0-4835-be40-d5021c31dfc5.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=33cde2f3-d8b4-46e2-b83c-adf27a1b0b4d.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a9fb1d22-4f7d-4f4e-87df-286575176cae.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11605
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=200c4806-a4bb-4ebd-ae15-8afc377a76cd.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bfaa7592-56dd-409b-968c-07fc9514f96b.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3d4ba06f-1b93-4848-a5fc-6b15c14d8c33.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8928f786-6e9e-4149-a116-652977598e75.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=00b60f0d-7476-4cc6-9f8a-cee80bd28df9.pdf
https://coloradosprings.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=583b88f5-c9dc-448d-902a-020ca6a24859.pdf


April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

Development Department, provided an informational presentation for the 

Annexation Policy Checkpoint on the proposed Colorado Centre Addition 

No. 3 Annexation, pertaining to 32.932 acres located northwest of the 

Foreign Trade Zone Boulevard and Bradley Road intersection. He 

provided a brief overview of the vicinity map and guidelines.

Larry Salazar, Kimley-Horn Associates, representing the applicant, COPO 

8560 Real Estate LLC, stated they are proposing to annex an enclave of 

approximately 32.9 acres in order to meet and also match the zoning code 

which was already established with El Paso County which is about 4.9 

acres mixed land use commercial and the remainder to be general 

industrial and light industrial.

There were no comments on this item.

10.  Councilmember Reports and Open Discussion

Councilmember Risley stated he attended the Building Commission 

meeting last week and reported that the permit numbers and construction 

numbers for residential construction are trending up, he stated he and 

Councilmember Henjum attended a kickoff meeting for AnnexCOS last 

week, he and Councilmember Leinweber hosted the second in their series 

of State of the Community town hall meetings, and there will be another one 

on Thursday, April 11, 2024.

Councilmember Henjum stated the Fountain Creek Watershed District is 

providing rain barrel distributions, she attended the celebration of Jay 

Cimino at the Mount Carmel Veterans Service Center, Pikes Peak Area 

Council of Governments regional meeting, and is looking forward to 

Councilmember Leinweber’s initiative, the Thousand Neighborhood 

Gatherings kick off.

Councilmember Leinweber stated he is also excited for the Thousand 

Neighborhood Gatherings kickoff which will be held on May 17, 18, and 19, 

2024 and the completion of the Blodgett Peak process which will be 

coming before the Parks Advisory Board on Thursday, April 11, 2024.

Councilmember Donaldson shared an article he read on Sunday, April 7, 

2024 called "America's Minsky Moment Approaches" regarding the debt of 

the United States and its effect on inflation which is going to affect 

Colorado Springs 

Page 14City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024



April 8, 2024Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

Councilmember Avila stated she and Councilmember Henjum attended the 

Regional Summit For Elected Officials, she spoke at Colorado College for 

a music class, and spoke at the Women's Leadership Group led by Alana 

Lipscomb, Program Director, Leadership Pikes Peak.

11.  Adjourn

There being no further business to come before City Council, President 

Helms adjourned the meeting at 3:46 PM.

Sarah B. Johnson, City Clerk

Page 15City of Colorado Springs Printed on 4/16/2024


